
 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Economic Regeneration, 
Housing and the Arts Policy 

and Accountability 
Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday 8 September 2015 
7.00 pm 

Small Hall - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Administration: Opposition Co-optees 

Councillor Daryl Brown 
Councillor Adam Connell 
Councillor Alan De'Ath (Chair) 
 

Councillor Lucy Ivimy 
Councillor Harry Phibbs 
 

 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Craig Bowdery 

Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2278 
 E-mail: craig.bowdery@lbhf.gov.uk  
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

27th August 2015 

 
 



  

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Economic Regeneration, Housing and the 
Arts Policy and Accountability Committee 

Agenda 
 

8 September 2015 
 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 * See note below.  

3.   MINUTES  1 - 5 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7th July 2015 and to note 
progress made against actions 
 

 

4.   THE ARTS STRATEGY  6 - 18 

 The administration aims to increase access to the arts for local residents 
and to maintain existing provision. To achieve this a draft arts strategy 
for the borough has been produced. The draft strategy sets out the 
council’s ambitions and vision for the arts. It is to be published for wide 
consultation after which time it will be further refined and adopted in 
Spring 2016.  
 

 

5.   DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING   

 It is proposed that the future meeting dates are as follows:  

 Tuesday 3rd November 2015  

 Tuesday 1st December 2015  

 Tuesday 19th January 2016 

 Tuesday 8th March 2016 

 Wednesday 20th April 2016 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 
* If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, whether or not it is  
entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any other significant interest which they 
consider should be declared in the public interest, they should declare the existence and, 
unless it is a sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as soon as it becomes 
apparent.  
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in attendance and speak, any 
Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest or other significant interest may also make 
representations, give evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote 
taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and speak, then the 
Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should withdraw from the meeting whilst the 
matter is under consideration. Councillors who have declared other significant interests 
should also withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation in the 
matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may give rise to a perception of a 
conflict of interest.  
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a dispensation to that effect 
has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions and Standards Committee.  



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

. 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Economic 
Regeneration, 

Housing and the 
Arts Policy and 
Accountability 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Tuesday 7 July 2015 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Daryl Brown, Alan De'Ath (Chair) and 
Lucy Ivimy 
 
Other Councillors: Councillors Lisa Homan and Andrew Jones  
 
Officers: Craig Bowdery (Scrutiny Manager), Mike England (Director for Housing 
Options Skills & Economic Development) and Toby Graves (Head of Housing 
Advice & Assessment)  
 

 
63. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs Connell, Fennimore and 
Phibbs.  
 

64. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Cllr Alan De’Ath declared a non-pecuniary interest as he was part of the 
Home Buy Scheme. He explained that he would remain in the room but not 
participate in this part of the discussion for agenda item 5.  
 

65. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED –  
That the minutes of the meeting held on 2nd June 2015 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair.  
 

66. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
RESOLVED –  
That Cllr Lucy Ivimy be elected as Vice-Chair for the 2015/16 municipal year.  
 

67. HOUSING STRATEGY SECOND PHASE OF CONSULTATION ON THE 
COUNCIL'S HOUSING ALLOCATION SCHEME; TENANCY STRATEGY; 
AND HOME BUY ALLOCATION SCHEME DRAFT DOCUMENTS  
 
Cllr Lisa Homan introduced a report from the Lead Director for Housing 
outlining proposals for new Council housing policies. She explained that at 
the beginning of the year, the overarching Housing Strategy was open for 
consultation and many comments were received. The Strategy had now been 
agreed and many of the comments submitted were now reflected in the 
subsidiary policies on housing allocation, the tenancy strategy and the Home 
Buy scheme. Comments on the proposals were therefore invited from 
councillors and members of the public, with the consultation due to end on 
16th September 2015.  
 
Cllr Homan explained the historical context of the proposed new policies, as 
prior to May 2013 there had been over 11,000 people on the housing register. 
Following changes made by the previous administration, over 10,000 people 
were removed. There were currently around 2,000 people on the list, and the 
new proposed policies were intended to increase this number further. 
However due to limited availability of housing in the Borough, only around 600 
homes were being allocated each year. Given the supply could not keep up 
with demand, it would therefore be important to strike a fair balance to 
determine who was eligible for housing.  
 
Officers summarised the report and outlined the key features of each 
proposed new policy and invited comments: 
 
Housing Allocation Scheme  
 
Noting the preferential weighting for residents making a defined community 
contribution, a member of the public asked whether this might potentially 
discriminate against disabled people. Officers explained that there were 
proposals within the policy to address this and ensure that disabled residents 
who met the other criteria would still be placed into Band 2. Following a public 
question, officers also confirmed that there was no grading of community 
contribution with all work (paid or voluntary) treated the same. The only 
exception was for members of the armed forces, who had separate provisions 
under national legislation. If a resident lost their job whilst on the register, then 
they would move down to Band 3, however if they had been allocated a home 
this would be a secure tenancy that was not dependent on maintaining the 
same circumstances. Officers also confirmed that once approved, the 
banding and priorities would become a statutory requirement for the Council 
to comply with, and as such there would not be instances of lower priority 
residents ‘jumping the queue’. There might however be instances when an 
available home is not suitable for someone on the highest Band (for example, 
if it were too small or large), in which case the home would be allocated to the 
highest ranked suitable tenant. It was noted that previously housing allocation 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

schemes had not been the most robust in terms of ensuring priority order was 
adhered to, with the arrangements under Locata being highlighted.  
 
Members of the public asked whether the priority bands would take into 
account factors such as poor or criminal behaviour. Officers explained that 
there would be some ability to disqualify people if there was clear evidence of 
antisocial or criminal behaviour. However there would not be an automatic 
expulsion from the housing register with the circumstances of each case 
judged on its merits. Disqualifying someone from being entitled to council 
housing was a sensitive matter and was an action that would not be taken 
without careful consideration in a case conference. The Cabinet Member 
reported that she had sat in on a case conference previously, and confirmed 
that all factors were carefully considered.  
 
In response to concern expressed about Looked After Children (LACs) and 
young people, officers explained that all children coming out of Council care 
would be covered by a quota and that there were around 30 flats allocated 
each year for this purpose. For homeless young people under the age of 18, 
Children’s Services provided assistance and those over 18 would be subject 
to the same requirements and banding as other residents. For vulnerable 
residents with Special Education Needs or in need of other support, the 
Borough also had a good range of supported accommodation.  
 
Tenancy Strategy   
 
Officers presented a summary of the proposed new strategy, a key 
component of which being a return to lifetime tenancies, with some fixed 
terms tenancies for particular circumstances. For example a Local Lettings 
Plan had been established for homes at the Edward Woods building 
specifically for new teachers as these homes were not suitable for families. 
 
The Committee asked about how the Strategy would be defining ‘teachers’ 
and whether this would be anyone working in education or not. Officers 
explained that anyone with the TTS qualification working in one of the 
borough’s schools (therefore not for private schools) would be eligible.  
 
Members highlighted that there was a particular shortage of larger properties 
within the Council’s housing portfolio, and asked therefore whether fixed 
terms tenancies should be considered when a family’s children moved away. 
Officers acknowledged that this had been considered and would be one way 
of ensuring there were more family homes available for those on the register. 
However on balance it had been agreed that providing residents with secure 
tenancies was more important. Officers also reported that under-occupation 
of homes was an issue where they thought the Council could do more. The 
Council currently offered £2,000 per room when residents agreed to downsize 
their home and it was suggested that the incentives should be developed 
further. Members of the public present argued that the public health benefits 
of secure, long-term tenancies outweighed any other issues as they promoted 
engagement with the community and dissuaded anti-social behaviour.  
 

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

The Cabinet Member also confirmed that if the new Strategy was agreed, the 
intention was to write to all existing short-term tenants to give them the option 
to convert their tenancies to lifetime arrangements.  
 
Home Buy Allocation Scheme  
 
Officers presented the proposed Scheme and Cllr Jones (Cabinet Member for 
Economic Development & Regeneration) explained that through the planning 
system there was currently many homes available at discount market rate 
(around 80% of market value), with hundreds more currently being built. 
However the Council wanted to provide affordable homes for those with lower 
household incomes of around £20-40,000. Land values in the Borough were 
extremely high which meant that even at 80% of market value, these homes 
were out of reach for many residents. The new Scheme therefore proposed 
intermediate level homes to provide truly affordable home ownership.  
 
Members of the public asked how the Council could control people buying 
affordable homes and selling them on quickly to make significant profits and 
reducing the overall level of affordable housing. Cllr Jones explained that 
homes purchased at discount market rates would have covenants applied to 
them so that if they were sold, it would have to be at the same discount 
market rate as it was purchased.  
 
Noting the priority afforded to certain occupations, members of the public 
asked why Police officers should be singled-out to be high priority and 
whether this should be expanded to all public sector workers. Officers 
explained that this was likely a historic provision, which could be reviewed as 
part of the consultation. Cllr Homan acknowledged that this should be 
reviewed and commented that Police officers would likely qualify through 
other criteria anyway.  
 
The Committee thanked officers for their presentation and noted that the 
consultation was open until 16th September and that members of the public 
were invited to respond.  
 
RESOLVED –  
That the report be noted.  
 

68. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 
The dates of future meetings were agreed as follows:  

 Tuesday 8th September 2015  

 Tuesday 3rd November 2015  

 Tuesday 1st December 2015  

 Tuesday 19th January 2016 

 Tuesday 8th March 2016 

 Wednesday 20th April 2016 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.30 pm 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
 

Chairman   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Craig Bowdery 
Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8756 2278 
 E-mail: craig.bowdery@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

Page 5

mailto:craig.bowdery@lbhf.gov.uk


 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Destination, creation and inclusionDestination, creation and inclusionDestination, creation and inclusionDestination, creation and inclusion    
 
A draft arts strategy for Hammersmith & FulhamA draft arts strategy for Hammersmith & FulhamA draft arts strategy for Hammersmith & FulhamA draft arts strategy for Hammersmith & Fulham    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

 
ContentsContentsContentsContents 

 

1. What do we want to achieve ? ...................................................................... 1 
 
2. Where are we now? ...................................................................................... 2 
 
3. Destination – Making the borough a national and international beacon for  
            the arts .......................................................................................................... 3 
 
4. Creation – Stimulating local artistic achievement .......................................... 5 
 
5. Inclusion – Arts for everyone ......................................................................... 6 
 
6. What do you think? ....................................................................................... 8 
 
 
Appendix A: Snapshot of HF ArtsFest participants ................................................... 9 
 
Appendix B: What the council funds ....................................................................... 10 

 

 
 
 

Page 7



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

1 
 

1.1.1.1. What What What What do we want to achieve do we want to achieve do we want to achieve do we want to achieve ????    
 
Hammersmith and Fulham is home to a vibrant arts and culture scene. But we are 
now trying to make it even better. 
 
• A more popular destination in which greater creativity thrives and the arts are 

enjoyed by more people from a wider range of backgrounds.  
 
• A place where residents more clearly drive how the council supports the arts and 

where every penny of arts funding is even more focused than now.  
 
• A borough where the arts are at the centre of a dynamic local economy, leading 

to new jobs and businesses. 
 
This draft strategy sets out our approach for achieving these aims, grouped under 
three core themes: destination , creation  and access . The purpose of the strategy 
is to set out the big picture and the broad nature of our approach rather than provide 
an exhaustive analysis of every type of arts activity. 
 

DestinationDestinationDestinationDestination    
We want to enhance the contribution of arts to the local community and 
economy by developing Hammersmith & Fulham as a thriving borough for the 
arts and promoting it as a creative and exciting place to live in, do business in 
and visit from within London, across the UK and overseas. 
 
CreationCreationCreationCreation    
We want to enhance the experience of living and working in the borough and 
boost the local economy by stimulating artistic achievement and supporting 
adults, children and young people from a wide range of backgrounds to 
create, produce and perform excellent art of all kinds. 
 
InclusionInclusionInclusionInclusion    
We want to ensure that residents from diverse backgrounds get more 
opportunity to enjoy and participate in a variety of types of art which 
challenges and inspires them and promotes their health and wellbeing. 

 
The success of our actions will depend on partnership  and focus . 

 
PartnershipPartnershipPartnershipPartnership    
We want the council’s efforts to support the arts to be clearly driven by 
residents. This will mean finding the best ways of working with residents, arts 
organisations and local businesses to develop and implement a common 
vision for the arts in the borough. 

 
FocusFocusFocusFocus    
We want to be sure that anything the council does to support the arts – 
including any funding in these tough economic times – clearly relates to our 
core themes. 

Page 8



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

2 
 

In the next section, we set out where the borough currently is. In the following 
sections, we then set out some ideas for how we can build Hammersmith & Fulham 
as an arts destination, stimulate local artistic achievement and ensure that the arts 
are for everyone. 
 
The consultation  on this draft strategy will run from 8 September 2015 to 31 
January 2016. Please see section 6 below for how you can give us your views. 
 
 
2.2.2.2. Where are we Where are we Where are we Where are we now?now?now?now?    
 
We already have a thriving arts scene in Hammersmith & Fulham in many ways. We 
are home to a number of large and prestigious arts organisations with national and 
international reputations, and we house a vibrant, diverse population of small 
organisations and artistic activity.  
 
The dynamism of local art activity beyond our high profile organisations is evidenced 
by the success of this year’s HF ArtsFest, in which 360 artists from across the 
borough offered 120 events representing all art forms, including music, theatre, 
visual art, literature, performance art and film. Appendix A  gives a snapshot of the 
activities, individuals and groups involved. 
 
A number of these artists and organisations receive some council funding. 
Appendix B  indicates the range and location of what we supported last year. 
 
FestivalsFestivalsFestivalsFestivals 
With support from the council, residents are already in the driving seat of two wide-
ranging festivals that showcase the arts in the borough.  
 
Now in only its second year, the HF ArtsFest week in June has established itself as 
a key happening for residents and the arts community. It promotes what is already 
being produced and organises bespoke events. Meanwhile, the Celebrating 
Fulham  in June-July promotes Fulham’s history, culture and attractions and 
encourages residents to spend with local businesses.  
 
Theatre Theatre Theatre Theatre     
The borough has a strong offering of theatre performance and development. The 
recently extended Lyric Theatre  draws audiences from across London and beyond 
and the Bush Theatre  has a national reputation for new plays and championing 
playwrights, while the London Academy of Music & Dramatic Art (LAMDA)  is an 
international centre for drama training. The Barons Court Theatre  offers an intimate 
fringe venue. The Riverside Studios  arts hub is expected to reopen in spring 2018. 
 
MusicMusicMusicMusic        
The borough has three well-known music venues: the Bush Hall , O2 Shepherds 
Bush Empire  and Eventim Apollo . These host live music and events and attract 
audiences from far afield. However, the borough does not have a dedicated concert 
hall. 

Page 9



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

3 
 

 
Visual artsVisual artsVisual artsVisual arts 
The Association for Cultural Advancement through Visual  Art (ACAVA)  
provides visual arts facilities, the Society of Fulham Artists and Potters  exhibits 
local artists and Artists at  Home  opens up the studios of local artists and craft-
workers in mid-June. Through the adult learning classes run by the council, 
hundreds of residents create arts and crafts every year.  
 
However, Hammersmith & Fulham does not have a significant, dedicated art gallery. 
Although the borough owns a valuable collection of Pre-Raphaelite paintings, known 
as the Cecil French Bequest , this is currently in storage and not on display. 
 
MuseumsMuseumsMuseumsMuseums  
The Museum of Fulham Palace  displays the historic home of the Bishops of 
London, while Kelmscott House Museum is the home of arts and crafts pioneer 
William Morris.  
 
Cultural centresCultural centresCultural centresCultural centres    
The Bhavan Centre , the Polish Social and Cultural Association Ltd (POSK)  and 
the Irish Cultural Centre  promote a wide variety of respectively Indian, Polish and 
Irish culture and art.  
 
 
3.3.3.3. Destination Destination Destination Destination ––––    Making the borough a national and Making the borough a national and Making the borough a national and Making the borough a national and 

international beacon for the artsinternational beacon for the artsinternational beacon for the artsinternational beacon for the arts    
 
We want to enhance the contribution of arts to the local community and 
economy by developing Hammersmith & Fulham as a thriving borough for the 
arts and promoting it as a creative and exciting place to live in and visit. 

 
The council is developing a strategy for regeneration and economic growth. This 
seeks to support local firms, boost the borough’s economy, increase residents’ 
economic activity and ensure we have the business rates income we need to help us 
fund services in the face of government cuts.  
 
It also aims to enhance the borough as an interesting, exciting and stimulating place 
to live and work, with artistic and cultural activity playing a central role in this 
approach.  
 
These aims are interrelated.  
 
In one strand of activity , the council aims to develop the borough as one of the 
leading destinations for arts activity, building on and adding to the high profile and 
well regarded arts organisations already located in Hammersmith and Fulham.  
 
  

Page 10



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

4 
 

This will involve: 
• Seeking to develop new significant arts attractions – art galleries or a concert hall 

might be examples – which boost the national and international profile of the 
borough as an arts destination; 

• Attracting high profile and internationally acclaimed arts performers and 
attractions to the borough, be they orchestras, art exhibitions or opera 
companies; and 

• Supporting and stimulating the dynamic diversity of smaller arts activities that 
form an integral part of developing the Borough as a beacon for the arts. 

 
In the other strand , the council aims to put arts at the centre of its strategies for 
achieving more employment, apprenticeship and contracting opportunities for local 
residents and businesses in the arts, entertainment, leisure, media and creative 
industries. We plan to do this by growing the number of visitors, using land 
development opportunities wisely and supporting the growth of strong clusters of 
firms across the broad creative industries. 
 
We start from a good position. In 2012, 8,653 people were employed in the arts, 
entertainment and leisure industries in Hammersmith & Fulham. At 6.8%, this is a 
higher share of the workforce than in London as a whole (5.1%) or England (4.4%)1. 
Earls Court and White City – where the BBC is continuing to maintain an important 
presence – have a legacy of arts and entertainment which can be built on. 
 
What will we do?What will we do?What will we do?What will we do?    

    
• The borough lacks some significant major arts venues, including a concert hall 

and major art galleries. We will seek in particular through our land development 
and regeneration strategies to support the location and establishment of new 
major arts venues that will attract visitors to the borough and boost the local 
economy. 
 

• We will develop a long-term plan for the borough’s own art collection - the Cecil 
French Bequest. This includes restoring the collection and fundraising to find a 
permanent home for its display in the borough. 
 

• New arts facilities should be sought as part of the major regeneration taking place 
across the borough, particularly in the specific major regeneration areas2. This 
includes artistic spaces, office for arts-related businesses and accommodation for 
small and medium-sized arts organisations as well as large ones. We will work 
with developers to maximise opportunities to build art into new developments, 
and also to make use of temporary arts spaces in, for example, buildings 
earmarked for redevelopment. 

 

                                                           
1 Office for National Statistics, 2012 
 
2 These are Old Oak, White City, Hammersmith Town Centre and Riverside, Earls Court and West 
Kensington, and South Fulham Riverside. 

Page 11



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

5 
 

• We will seek to ensure that both the Earls Court and Old Oak Common 
regeneration areas secure high quality, internationally recognised cultural venues 
as part of their schemes.  
 

• We will actively seek to support our high profile large arts venues in attracting 
major national and international arts attractions; and we will also encourage a 
wide range of art fairs and exhibitions into the borough.  
 

• In strategic discussions with national organisations, we will advocate on behalf of 
arts groups in Hammersmith & Fulham and lobby to attract support and external 
funding for arts initiatives in the borough. 

 
• We will seek to work with local educational institutions, businesses and public 

organisations to maximise the employment opportunities for local people in the 
arts and creative industries. 

 
 
4.4.4.4. Creation Creation Creation Creation ––––    Stimulating local artistic achievementStimulating local artistic achievementStimulating local artistic achievementStimulating local artistic achievement    
 
We want to enhance the experience of living and working in the borough and 
boost the local economy by stimulating artistic achievement and supporting 
people from a wide range of backgrounds to create and produce excellent art 
of all kinds. 
 
There is a thriving arts scene in Hammersmith & Fulham, with many nationally 
recognised organisations as well as individuals producing high quality art.  
 
We want to make it easier for individual artists to find space to develop, create and 
perform excellent art. We also want to help them find customers and audiences. As 
regards larger arts organisations, we want to support existing ones to achieve 
greater artistic creativity and we want to attract new ones to the borough. 
 
The focus must be on artistic excellence. We will also want to pay particular attention 
to artists, organisations and businesses who encourage audiences and users to 
expand their horizons and explore new ideas 
 
What will we do?What will we do?What will we do?What will we do?    

    
• We will facilitate a network for local artists and people interested in the arts in the 

borough. This will disseminate information, share best practice and promote arts 
activity.  
 

• We will encourage pop-up art galleries for local artists to exhibit and sell their 
work by providing contacts and advice on how to use empty buildings for this 
activity. 

 
• We will work with land owners and developers to provide access to affordable 

studio space.  

Page 12



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

6 
 

• We will disseminate information on funding streams for the arts.  
 

• We will promote the borough’s creative industries to raise their profile, and work 
to attract new and industry-leading firms to the Borough. 
 

• We will establish a forum where businesses and artists can come together to 
arrange the loan or purchase of art for display in offices. 

 
• We will establish a panel of borough artists, creative professionals and creative 

industry experts to advise on the joined-up delivery of the arts strategy.  
 

• We will appoint an arts officer to provide support and advice.  
 

• We will become an active member of the London Councils Arts & Culture Forum3. 
 
 
5.5.5.5. Inclusion Inclusion Inclusion Inclusion ––––    Arts for everyoneArts for everyoneArts for everyoneArts for everyone    
 
We want to ensure that residents from a wide range of backgrounds get more 
opportunity to enjoy and participate in a variety of art which challenges and 
inspires them and promotes their health and wellbeing. 
 
There are many opportunities for residents to enjoy, create and perform high quality 
art in the borough. At our well-attended adult learning classes, residents study a 
range of arts and crafts from creating stained glass windows to comic book 
illustration. We also run a programme for learners with learning disabilities, including 
classes and workshops with the Amici Dance Theatre Company. 
 
However, we know that numerous residents do not access the arts for a variety of 
reasons, including cultural and financial. 
 
We want to ensure that all residents have opportunities to access the arts. In 
particular, we want to expand young people’s horizons and stimulate their 
imagination, ambition and sense of the possible by giving them exposure to forms of 
art they would otherwise be unlikely to access. 
 
We also want to support the vast range of grassroots (or community-led) performing 
arts, music and dance clubs active across our borough. These groups help make 
arts accessible to residents from all backgrounds. 
 
And we want to ensure that more people are able to benefit from the therapeutic 
effect of the arts on health, wellbeing and social inclusion. People who participate in 

                                                           
3 This brings together officers from all London councils’ cultural services and representatives from Arts 
Council England, the Greater London Authority, London Councils and London & Partners to develop 
and promote local arts and cultural provision, share information and good practice, identify areas for 
collaboration, support advocacy for local arts and culture services, and embed arts and culture in the 
wider agenda. 
 

Page 13



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

7 
 

the arts as audience members are likely to report good health, saving the public 
purse money4.  
 
What will we do?What will we do?What will we do?What will we do?    
    
• We will use art as a way of engaging with younger people to expand their 

horizons and their ambitions 
 

• We will promote and support projects that encourage the participation of children 
and young people in arts activities.  
 

• We will use art as a way of engaging with older people to improve their health 
and wellbeing.  
 

• We will seek to expand apprenticeships within creative organisations in the 
borough by offering support and information.  
 

• We will work with healthcare providers to promote the positive effects of 
participating in arts activity on health and wellbeing.  
 

• HF ArtsFest is an extraordinary achievement by a dedicated group of residents 
that brings the arts right into and across our community. We will support it to 
develop and grow further so it can become financially sustainable.  
 

• We will promote the value of volunteering in the arts. 
 

• With a range of private, public and third sector partners we will develop a plan for 
tackling barriers, including financial ones, to accessing high quality art.  
 

• We will encourage more artistic businesses in the borough to provide greater 
access, for example by emulating the Lyric Theatre’s free first night tickets5. 

 
• We will provide access to the Cecil French Bequest by taking high resolution 

pictures of the collection and making these available to schools and colleges.  
 

• We will ensure that we consider inclusion in everything we fund. 
 

• We will support programmes and projects that encourage the participation of 
socially excluded groups in the arts.  
 

                                                           
4 For example, saving up to £168.8m a year in reduced GP visits and a further £227.8m in reduced 
use of mental health services. Culture and Sport Evidence (CASE) strategic research programme, 
2015 
 
5 People who live or work in Hammersmith & Fulham can get two free tickets per household to the first 
night of all main house Lyric productions. Tickets are given away on the Friday and Saturday before 
the first performance. 

Page 14



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

8 
 

• We will provide free exhibition space in the glass box outside the Town Hall to 
local artists.  
 

• We will include artistic elements in the borough’s events such as fireworks and 
Playdays.  
 

• We will promote the art available to view at the Imperial College Healthcare 
Hospitals. 
 

• We will make increased use of our libraries as cultural spaces for exhibitions, 
performances and creativity across a wide range of art forms. We will look to gain 
funding and support from Arts Council England for this and to enhance the 
libraries’ role as a place for local residents and artists to engage with each other. 

 

6. WWWWhat do you think?hat do you think?hat do you think?hat do you think? 
 
We would very much welcome your views on the strategy – both on the strategy as a 
whole and particular aspects.  
 
Consultation on the strategy will run from 8 September 2015 to 31 January 2016. 
This will range from public meetings to written comments and contributions from 
individuals and organisations. 
 
If you would like to write to us, it would be helpful if you could address the four 
questions below but feel free to range more widely. 
 

(1) Are our priorities the right ones? 
 

(2) Which of the ideas here do you think most worth  exploring? 
 

(3) What have we missed?  
 

(4) How do you want to work with us? 
 
Please could you head your comments “Arts strategy consultation”  and send 
them by 31 January 2016 either by email  to Donna.Pentelow@lbhf.gov.uk or by 
post  to Donna Pentelow, Hammersmith Town Hall, King Street, London W6 9JU. 
  

Page 15



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

9 
 

Appendix A: Snapshot of HF ArtsFest Appendix A: Snapshot of HF ArtsFest Appendix A: Snapshot of HF ArtsFest Appendix A: Snapshot of HF ArtsFest activities and activities and activities and activities and 
participantsparticipantsparticipantsparticipants    
 

• Hepsibah Gallery 
• Sam Deards Photography 

Exhibition 
• Lisa Norris Gallery 
• Angelica Spranger Fine Art 

Photography 
• National Army Museum  
• Masbro Centre’s Art Experience 
• The Gate 
• Hammersmith United Charities 

exhibition 
• Jack Jones Poetry Trail 
• Bush Theatre 
• Lyric Hammersmith 
• Bush Baby Orchestra 
• The Stories of Science at Blythe 

House 
• Children’s Art Club at 

Shepherd’s Bush Library 
• Singing for Breathing at John 

Bett’s House 
• Poetry Event at Askew Road 

Library 
• An Evening at LAMDA 
• Justin Nozuka 
• V&A’s Clothworkers’ Centre at 

Blythe House 
• Watercolour Taster at Fulham 

Palace 
• Science Museum Artefacts Tour 
• Lux Lisbon Band 

• Nomad Books Story Time 
• Paperbirds Art & Craft Club 
• The Family Rain Band 
• West London Link Design 

Exhibition 
• William Morris Society & 

Museum 
• Hammersmith United Charities 

Photographic Exhibition 
• Lovin’ Daniel A New Irish 

Community Play 
• All Saints Church Choir - Choral 

and Cabaret 
• POSK Jazz Café - Emily 

Saunders 
• Dukes of Havoc Band 
• A House of Many Sides - a tour 

of Blythe House 
• Fulham Camerata Choir 
• W11 Opera 
• BushStock 2015 
• Glen Aitken at the Durell 
• Ravenscourt Park Glasshouse 

Exhibition 
• W6 Triennial site-specific 5M² 
• The Friends of Kensal Green 

Cemetery 
• The Road To Knock Film 

Screening 
• Baka Beyond 
• Hetley Road Open Studios 

  

Page 16



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

10 
 

Appendix B: Appendix B: Appendix B: Appendix B: What the council fundsWhat the council fundsWhat the council fundsWhat the council funds    
 

• Albert & Friends Instant Circus  – Located in Hammersmith, Albert & 

Friends Instant Circus (A&FIC) exists to develop the physical and creative 

potential of children and young people using circus and the physical arts. 

• ArtWest Open Studios – ArtWest is a collective of artists in West London, 

who all open their studios to the public one weekend in the autumn.  

• Taxi Pata Pata – Based in Shepherds Bush, support the Congolese 

community, and offer African Arts & Music projects.  

• Addison Singers  – Comprise of two classical choirs and two jazz choirs. It 

also offers three different singing classes to meet the needs of beginners, 

intermediate and the more competent, experienced singer. 

• Irish Cultural Centre  - Established since 1995, the centre is acclaimed for 

providing one of the most exciting and adventurous weekly programmes in the 

UK, featuring Ireland’s best traditional and contemporary musicians, an Irish 

film programme, Irish literary events, Theatre and art exhibitions. 

• Amici Dance Company  – Established 35 years, Amici is a unique dance 

theatre company integrating able-bodied & disabled artists and performers.  

• HF Arts Festival  – community led festival promoting and celebrating the 

cultural richness in the borough. 

• Fulham Opera  - One of the UK’s premier independent professional 

companies, Fulham Opera exists to produce large scale works in the intimate 

space of St. John’s Church, Fulham.  

• Music ‘all  - Music’all is a not-for-profit, extra-curricular music school based in 

Parsons Green for children age 4-18, from beginner to advanced level.  

• Lyric Hammersmith  - The Lyric Hammersmith aims to produce work that is 

provoking, entertaining, popular, eclectic, messy, contradictory and diverse. 

• William Morris Society  - The William Morris Society, based at Kelmscott 

House, aims to perpetuate the memory of one of the greatest men of the 

Victorian, or any, age. 

 

 

Page 17



Draft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategyDraft arts strategy        
    
 

 

11 
 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 The Arts Strategy

